GSM Sensor Control

Preliminary operating manual

🔳 Ri	Inummern und Siche	rheit:					?	×					S2 1
Name	1:	Land:	Vorwaht	Rufnummer:	_ 🔽 Befe	shle anne	hmen		E Eing	gänge, H	ysterese une	d Ansc	×
M	ustermann	+49	271	1234567	I Alan	m / Meldu	ng / Tim	er	Geräteb	ezeichnu	ng GS	MSensor	
Name	2	Land	Vorwaht	Rufnummer:	_ 🔽 Befe	shle anne	hmen		An	schluss:	Ans	chlussbezeichnun	a
Te	estus	+49	271	7654321	✓ Alan	m / Meldu	ng / Tim	er			0.4		_
Name	3	Land:	Vorwaht	Rufnummer:	_ 🔽 Befe	shle anne	hmen		Helais A	usgang I	81	Sak	
	Release V2.1.00 -	2010-04-25	- ©2009-2010					er 🚛		ervak.	- P3	JCK.	
Narr	Datei Bearbeiten	Land	Volvisht	Rufrummer	V Bal	No anns	mon		Hilfe	gang 2	82	Sok.	_
	Multifunction	n	ј⊷ СОМ11	1						eival.	14	JCK.	-
Nam	GSM Control	Device	Erkanntes Ger	at GSMSensor - SN 2010	0425-1710	32-2095	1000		****	ang 1	DI	G1	_
			- Übenwacher	und Schalten	IV Alar	n / Meldi		ec	Digitale	34-2	DI	02	
Nam	6		Eingänge	Veraleichswert	aber/	81	B2		S Melduna		Geratestat	US :	Sel Sel
					unter	n / Meldi	10/10	14 01	15 Interducing	- A	DC1: DI	10	Digital In 1:
Nam	7		ADC1	10.0 mA (uber)	C		nen	N F	earbeiten	R	11	.13 mA	LO
	and the second second		ADC2	10.0 mA (über)	ċ	n / Esid		₩ t	earbeiten		202	Einheit	Digital In 2
Nam	R		DIG1	Runummer		•			earbeiten: BB	Ĩ	20.000	00 mA	
			DIG2			n / Meidi	~		Schallh earbeiten		n Prozent: U	.00 IIIA	
2			mem erlauben.				-		Engels	P R	elais 1:	R1 Ereignis:	Digital In 3:
1 1			a shis benatçar			-	-		odipenent.		ON		10
Bere			DIG4		statauchr.		M	1013	Arrange		Endwert		1 20
			- Ahfragen un	d Schalten ner SMS					0.00	B	elais 2:008	R2 Ereignis:	Digital In 4:
			SMS Statusa	bfrage:				TATUS	Schultz	i e da i	OFF	3.0%	LO
			Relais 1 - on	/off/pulse/auto:			R	1	Eingang				4
			Relais 2 · on	/off / pulse / auto:			R	2		SI	M/PIN Lock	Status:	_
	COM		SMS Meldun	gen - on / off:			И	SMS	Sta	1 N	licht ange	meldet.	
			SMS Interval	meldungen - on / off:			I	SMS		Er	mpfangspegel	94%	
	Sensor Contr	ol	☐ Intervall-4	Automatik, Status per SMS s	enden,	са	alle: 1	Minut	e –		-53		
			Cushan		hanakaraa	1	Abbumb	1	Cabladan			1	
	20100425-1710	032-2095	Suchen	nize	bethennier		Abbruch		schlieben	1 -	etzte SMS Me	sldung CLR	SMS Testen
			[SMS Texteingabe:	-	-			? X				*
				ADC1 Grenzwert ü	berschi	ritten							
													*
				Bereit.			Abb	ruch [Sichern	Co	unt: 116, OP=	07 COM=13 In=0	Out=99 Dig=00

Table of contents

1. Software Lizenzvertrag
2. Safety notes 4
3. Technical data
4. System requirements
4.1. System requirements for the GSM Sensor Control device
4.2. System requirements for the parameterization software5
The software requires no further installation. Just copy the program to your hard disk or run it directly from another data carrier. There is no need for further installations by the user
5. Commissioning
5.1. Connectors and interfaces
5.2. Insertion of the SIM card
6. Parameterization
6.1. The main window of the parameter setting program10
6.2. Editing of SMS text
6.3. The dialogue "Connectors and scales"13
6.4. The dialogue "Phone numbers and safety" 14
6.5. The dialogue for displaying measuring and for testing settings15
6.6. Analysis of SMS commands
7. Misc
7.1. Application samples
7.1.1. Gate control over cell phone17

1. Software license

1.1. Usage conditions

All copyright at and to this product are property of MELTEC. The product is protected both by copyright and by international copyright regulations as well as by further laws and contracts over mental property. You agree the software or the associated user documentation, contained in the product, in no case, completely or in excerpts, to copy or reproduce without permission of MELTEC. You agree, to make a copy of the application software belonging to the product exclusively for the purpose of the safety (backup copy) and to omit the reproduction of the user documentation. Reading, scanning, copying or analyzing of the firmware code is prohibited in every case. You have the right to use this software and user documentation in agreement with this program product license agreement. You are not allowed to analyze DLL's or every part of the software, to reverse engineering, to decompiling, disassembling or to combine the software with other software or insert it into other application software or print out the software.

MELTEC do not take over any liability for any consequences, which are due from or in connection with the use or function of this product.

The product, all its components and the documentation are subject to change without notice at every time. MELTEC gives you the not exclusive right to use this software if you agree the regulations and conditions of the following Treaty:

1.2. License treaty

§1. Term explanation

1.1. "Software" means all application software programs included in the MELTEC product.

1.2. "Hardware" means all devices, hardware equipments and accessory parts in any kind, developed by MELTEC.

1.3. "Firmware" means the operating system and control software and micro programs, contained in any devices and equipments, developed by MELTEC.

1.4. "User documentation" means the user manual, associated to this MELTEC product.

§2.Usage conditions

2.1. You are permitted, to install this software on only one computer.

2.2. You are permitted, to male only on backup copy of the software.

§3. Limitations

3.1. You are not allowed, to copy or reproduce, completely or in excerpts, the software or any part of documentation without a permission of MELTEC.

3.2. If not differently indicated in the present Treaty or the user documentation, you are not allowed to generate a copy of the software without express permission of MELTEC.

3.3. You are not allowed to generate a copy of user documentation.

3.4. You are not permitted, to use this software, or a copy of this software, on more than one PC.

3.5. They are not allowed to sell or lease this software or firmware, a copy of this software or firmware, or the user documentation.

3.6. If not differently indicated in this Treaty or the user documentation, you are not allowed to lease, to sell or manufacture a derivative of this software or firmware or the user documentation.

3.7. You are not allowed, to analyze, to back-develop, to decompile or to disassemble DLLs or any part of the software or of the firmware, or to combine or integrate it into other software or to print it.

§4. Limited guarantee. MELTEC guarantees you, for a period of 90 days after receiving the software or a product which contains the software, that every original storage medium used for the software is clear of substantial failures or damages, which may handicap the usage or function of the software. The liability of MELTEC is limited to the storage medium, which does not correspond to the conditions of the limited guarantee, if it was returned to MELTEC together with a copy of original invoice. MELTEC don't accept any liability for possible damages which may caused by the installation of the product (e.g. damages by viruses or data loss).

§5. Non-liability

5.1. Excluding the limited guarantee, with exception of the limited guarantee granted herein no further guarantee, neither expressly nor konkludent, exists, including but not limited to the guarantee for marketability and/or suitability for a certain purpose.

5.2. MELTEC is not responsible for damage, in any kind, which causes from or in connection with the supply by it or third (inclusively, but not limited to general or specific damage, damages or coincidental damage, including damage due to profit loss, operating interrupt, loss of business information or similar damage), to which use or the mode of operation of the product is due.

§6. Effective validity period

6.1. This license agreement is valid with receiving the product.

6.2. In case of breaking this treaty in any kind, it is quit and you are obligated to return this software to MELTEC immediately. In this case the purchase price is not returned.

2. Safety notes



- The GSM sensor control device and the depending software must not be used in applications where people can be threatened or violated. It must not be used as an emergency stop switch on equipment and machinery or in other security areas!
- Please note that the GSM radio modem of the GSM Sensor Control module must register with a GSM provider. For this, a SIM card and a PIN is required. The PIN must be stored in the module, so that this can automatically log in to the provider. When you enter a wrong PIN and start the module for three times, then the SIM card will automatically be blocked. Please enter a valid PIN number before inserting the SIM card, so the system cannot even register with an incorrect PIN.
- Please ensure that the GSM sensor control device is disconnected from the power supply when inserting the SIM card. Otherwise the device could be damaged while inserting the card, caused by offset voltages or short circuits.
- The GSM sensor control device may not be operated in areas in which electromagnetic waves or radio signals can cause serious problems in equipment or systems.
- The operation of the device within a GSM network is causing additional costs, which may differ dependent from the provider, the data volume and the usage time.
- For the application of the GSM Sensor Control, the legal regulations of the country in which the equipment is operated must be respected!
- You must always check the correct GSM function, using some control calls, until the equipment is used for good. The local radio conditions are not predictable and the SMS delivering time may need between 1 second to several minutes, depending on the GSM provider and the SMS Service Center.
- The relay outputs can be switched either by instruction of the user by means of an SMS, or following an alarm condition. The response times are very much dependent on individual circumstances. During a GSM communication, monitoring tasks can be delayed for a few seconds, the relays respond normally in about 0.5 seconds after the event occurs. The SMS delivering time is not predictable, nor is there a delivery guarantee. Usually, a delivering time between 5 to 90 seconds may be expected.
- The circuit of the GSM sensor control module can be damaged by static electricity, by short-cuts or surges, if not handled with care. Work on the open device therefore is only with the greatest attention. In particular, the connection of sensors or other external devices to the device connector, wires in no case must come in contact with internal circuit parts.

3. Technical data

Power supply		
	DC 8 24 V	Power supply DC 8 30 V (+/-10%) regulated
Inputs		
	4 x digital	Digital inputs 524V, 20mA over optocouplers, alarm- switch time ca. 500 ms.
	2 x analog	Analogue inputs 0 20mA, +/- typically 0.01%
Outputs		
	2 x Relais	Relay outputs 50V / 2A
GSM modem		
	GSM	GSM850, EGSM900, DCS1800, PCS 1900 Netze , Command interpreter for controlling the device by SMS messages.
	GSM900	GSM class 4, up to 2 W transmission power (33 dBm)
	GSM1800	GSM calss 1, up to 1 W transmission power (30 dBm)
	Sensitivity	Receiver sensitivity < -102 dBm

4. System requirements

4.1. System requirements for the GSM Sensor Control device

For the commissioning of the device a sufficient power supply (8 ... 30 V) is necessary.

As to the basic functions of the device in addition to measuring and monitoring belongs the communications within the GSM network (e.g. alerting via SMS), for an effective use, a cell phone network coverage is required.

For communication within the GSM telephone network also a standard SIM card is required, which is found in normal cell phone use. Communication leads to increased costs in the context of the used mobile phone contract.

In the case of using the analog inputs, it must be ensured, that the used sensor device can really deliver the 20 mA on a device voltage below 16V also.

The relay outputs can be switched either by instruction of the user by means of an SMS, or following an alarm condition. The response times are very much dependent on individual circumstances. During a GSM communication, monitoring tasks can be delayed for a few seconds, the relays respond normally around 0.5 seconds after occurrence of the alarm event. The SMS delivering time is not predictable, nor is there a delivery guarantee. Usually, a SMS delivering time can be expected ranging between 5 to 90 seconds.

The output named "relay A" is also named "relay 1" or "R1", the output named "relay B" is also named "relay 2" or "R2" in the software.

4.2. System requirements for the parameterization software

The program for parameterization of the GSM Sensor Control module is designed as a Windows 32 compliant application for Windows XP, Windows Vista or Windows 7. The software uses only general Windows functions, such as access to the hardware (RS232C, etc.).

Older versions of Windows, as Windows ME, Windows'98, Windows'95, Windows 3.x or DOS-based systems are not suitable.

The application is also suitable for 64-bit systems, where it is executed within a 32-bit subsystem.

To ensure an efficient use of the program, the following minimum system requirements are recommended:

- X86/X64 compatible PC with a suitable Windows operating system.
- Sufficient amount of memory to ensure the correct function of the Windows operating system and to allow standard applications.
- Enough free hard disk space for the correct function of Windows operating system.
- At least a video resolution of 1024 x 768 pixels with 64K (16-bit) color depth. The use of lower resolutions is also possible, e.g. for notebook devices, however, the possibility that individual components of dialogue cannot find space on the screen.
- At least one free COM port to connect the GSM Sensor Control device. It can also be USB to RS232
 adapter unless it has a Windows COM port drivers and set up a logical interface.

The software requires no further installation. Just copy the program to your hard disk or run it directly from another data carrier. There is no need for further installations by the user.

5. Commissioning

The unit is basically ready for operating after turning supply power on. Depending on the requirements, you first must setting-up some important adjustments.



The GSM functions are ready for use after inserting a SIM card, configuring the network access information and logging into an suitable GSM network.

5.1. Connectors and interfaces



RS232 interface port for configuration
 SIM card holder
 Status LEDs
 Input signal terminal
 Terminal block for power supply and the outputs
 Conduit for the cable

Note: The output named "relay A" is also named "relay 1" or "R1", the output named "relay B" is also named "relay 2" or "R2" in the software.

RS232 interface port for configuration

The GSM sensor control device contains a RS232 compatible 3-wire interface for connection to the PC. Control lines are not required.

2 SIM card holder

For the use of the SMS interface, the GSM sensor control device first has to register to a GSM service provider. This will require a SIM card. The card must be inserted into this card holder. Any standard SIM card for GSM cell phones can be used.

Status LEDs

The GSM Sensor Control contains four status LEDs which have the following signaling functions:

- GSM transmitting signal.
- Operating LED. This LED is off if no supply voltage. It's permanently on if supply voltage is on and device is not connected to GSM. It's blinking if device is logged to a GSM network..
- Relay 1 status LED. This LED is on, if relay 1 is closed.
- Relay 2 status LED. This LED is on, if relay 2 is closed.



This left side terminal consists of 6 different connectors. The connectors are assigned as follows:

- Analogue input A
- Analogue input B
- Digital input 1
- Digital input 2
- Digital input 3
- Digital input 4

5 Terminal block for power supply and the outputs

The right hand side terminal consists of the power supply and the relay connectors. It has the following contacts::

- +24V DC power connector
- Ground
- Relay 1 connector
- Relay 2 connector

6 Conduit for the cable

Through this opening, the connections made to terminal blocks.

5.2. Insertion of the SIM card

The SIM card is required for logging the radio module with your GSM provider. For the GSM Sensor Control device you can use a normal GSM cell phone card from any provider. As the device will register the GSM module after inserting the SIM card to the local GSM network, also it must have a valid PIN already been stored in the module. Please do the following:

- Connect the GSM sensor control device, even without a SIM card, to the PC. Switch it on and start the parameterization program.
- Enter your PIN number in the dialog box and click on "Apply" to commit the changes to the device. Your PIN number is now stored in the device. It is recommended to make all further settings already now, so that unnecessary and potentially expensive GSM access is prevented due to incorrect settings.
- Turn the device off again and disconnect it from the PC.
- For insertion of the SIM card open the housing of the GSM Sensor Control device and insert the card into the SIM card holder. Then close the housing again.
- After that, the GSM Sensor Control device can be connected and turned on again. It then logs automatically after a few seconds at the local GSM network and begins the configured monitoring tasks. The correct registration with the GSM network can be recognized according to the blinking status LED. Until the beginning of the monitoring functions about 30 seconds may pass.

You need to confirm the correct GSM function always using some checking-calls before the equipment is used for good. The local radio conditions are not predictable and depends on the GSM provider and SMS Service Center also expected to SMS maturities between 1 second to several minutes.

6. Parameterization

Immediately after loading, the parameterization program starts looking for connected GSM Sensor Control devices. In this process automatically all appropriate and available RS232 interfaces of the PC are searched. A further configuration of interfaces or a manual selection is not required. Of course, only connected and powered devices can be found.

After the search process, the parameterization of the first found device is read automatically and displayed on screen, or all dialogue items in main window are disabled and grayed if no device was found.

In rare cases it may occur, that a connected GSM Sensor device unit cannot even respond quickly enough, e.g. if it receives at this moment a SMS or is otherwise busy. If a connected device cannot be found directly, you can repeat the device search just as often as necessary.

In the case, that more than one sensor GSM Control device is found, you can select one of the found devices using the tabulator control (see description of the parameterization dialogue). The maximum number of simultaneously connected devices is limited by the number of available serial RS232 ports.

R R	ufnummern und Siche	erheit:					?	×						
Name	1:	Land:	Vorwahl: Ruf	Rufnummer: 🔽 Befehle annehmen			🔲 Eingänge, Hysterese und Ansc 🖓 💌							
M	ustermann	+49	271 1	234567	🔽 Alarr	n / Meldu	ung / Time	er 🛛	Gerätet	bezeichn	iung: [GSMSensor		
Name	2:	Land:		nummer:	_ 🔽 Befe	hle anne	hmen		Ar	nschluss		Anschlussbezeichnur	ar.	
Te	estus	+49	271 7	654321	🔽 Alar	n / Meldu	ung / Time	ाः					_	
Name	3:	Land:	Vorwahl: Ruf	nummer:	_ 🔽 Befe	hle anne	hmen		Relais /	Ausgang		81 9. Solu	_	
	🔚 Release V2.1.00 -	2010-04-25	- ©2009-2010						_ _ X	Perval		2 SEK.	_	
Nam	Datei Bearbeiten	Land:	Vorwahl: Rut	nummer:	🔽 🕅 Befe	hle anne	hmen		Hilfe	gang	2 . [9 Sok	_	
I	Multifunction	n	👍 СОМ11							Sili Bivai	•	2 JEN.	_	
Nam	GSM Control	Device	Erkanntes Gerät:	GSMSensor - SN 2010	0425-1710	32-2095	hmen	PIN:	****	ang 1	[DIG1		
1			– Überwachen ur	nd Schalten:				31	Digitale	er - 1	Gerätes	DIG2 status:	(? <mark>-</mark> >	3
Nam	6		Eingänge	Vergleichswert	Ober/	R1	R2		SMS Meldung	h e F		DIGS	Diaballa da	Schli
			ADC1	10.0 mA (über)		n / Meldi	ing / Time		Digitals bearbeiten	∎ P A	ADUT:	11 12 mA		-
Name	7:		VolterRu	40.0 m A (über)	C	hle anne	hmen		Analog	eingangl		II.IJ IIIA		
			ADC2	10.0 mA (user)	C	n / <u>M</u> eldi	ing (v im	~	bearbeiten	1	ADC2:	Einheit:	Digital In 2:	
Nam	18:		MoDIG1	nummer	Befe	hie v ine	hme n 		bearbeiten bearbeiten		20.00	0.00 mA	LO	
			DIG2		in Aldi		2		bearbeiten			0.000 (0.000)	1	
	ausaunage auch von a		DIG3			$\overline{\mathbf{v}}$		Е	bearbeiten	F	Relais 1:	R1 Ereignis:	Digital In 3:	_
Bere			DIG4					Г	bearbeitenabe	eingano	ON	ADC2	LO	
					ADDIGGI		1 OIS		Antang	i i i i i i	Endwert	Einheit 8 northeieuiu	Diabatta A	
			Abfragen und S	chalten per SMS:					Schalt	unterera		13.6%		-
			SMS Statusabha	ige:			SI	AIU	S Einden		ULL	0.64.20.		
_			Belais 2 - on / o	ff / pulse / auto:			n R2	•			SIM/PIN Lo	ck Status:		
	0011		SMS Meldunger	1 - on / off:			MS	MS	Sta	o ar I	Nicht an	gemeldet. OK		-
			SMS Intervalime	ldungen - on / off:			IS	MS		E	Empfangspe	egel: 94%		
	Soncor Contr	al	🔲 Intervall-Auto	omatik, Status per SMS s	enden,	са	alle: 1	Min	ute 👻		-53			Π
	Sensor Contr	01		(1		-						┛
	20100425-171	032-2095	Suchen	Hilfe	bernehmen	<u> </u>	Abbruch		Schließen	J,	Letzte SMS	Meldung CLR	SMS Testen	
	SMS Texteingabe:						וות							
	ADC1 Grenzwert überschritten!													
										-				
	Bereit. Abbruch Sichem					Sichern	C	ount: 116, 0)P=07 COM=13 In=0	1 Out=99 Dig=00	-			

6.1. The main window of the parameter setting program

🔚 Release V2.1.01 - 2010-05-30 -	©2009-2010	x
File Edit 1	He	elp
Multifunction		
GSM Control Device	Found device: GSMSensor - SN 20100620-114656-2101 (3) PIN: ***	
	Surveillance and switches:	
	Inputs Threshold over/ R1 R2 🔽 SMS message	
	ADC1 10.0 mA (above)	J
	ADC2 10.0 mA (above)	1
	DIG1	1
	DIG2	1
	DIG3 8	1
	DIG4]
	Queries and switching by SMS:	
	SMS status query:	Ĩ
	Relay 1 - on / off / puls / auto:	1
Construction of the Constr	Relay 2 - on / off / puls / auto:	1
COM	SMS messages - on / off: 15	1
TOV CH	SMS interval messages - on / off:	
Sensor Control	Entry al automatic, send status by SMS, ca. alle: 1 minute 18	
2010062024 656-2101		

Description of controls:

- Main Window menu. Some less often used features of the program are available by the program menue. The main functionality of the menu is to open the sub dialogues, e.g. the dialogue for setting the phone numbers, the dialogue for configuration of the inputs and the outputs or the measurement display for checking the correct function after adjusting the device.
- Tab for the selection of a device. Once a device is connected to the PC and identified by the software, a tab will appear with his COM port number for the connection. You may see several tabs are displayed, if more than one device is connected. In this case, you can select the desired device by its tab.
- Display of the name of the selected device and its serial number. The selected device can be identified by this ad. Here beside the device name, the assigned unique serial number is displayed.
- Input for the SIM pin. In this field you must enter the PIN number of the SIM card. This is very important because the device cannot book into a GSM network without the valid PIN number. Please note that the input of an incorrect PIN number can cause the blocking of the SIM card after several times the device is turned on again with a inserted SIM card. If this happens, the card must be unlocked again using the PUK (using a normal mobile phone). The software is designed so that a PIN "0000" is understood as "not entered". In this case, the device don't try to book into a GSM network. Therefore, it is not possible to establish a "0000" as a GSM SIM PIN for connection.
- 6 Names of the inputs. In this column the names of the inputs are shown. You can enter or change the names using the dialog for configuration of the scaling, the inputs and outputs.

- 6 Thresholds for analog inputs. Here, the threshold for switching based on a analogue input level is available. The value must correspond to the set scaling, entered in the dialogue for the configuration of the inputs and outputs and scaling. E.g. for an input a scaling of 0 ... 20 mA was defined, the threshold must lie within the set 0 ... 20 mA and a threshold of 40 is not valid.
- Choice for switching with exceeding threshold or shortfall the threshold value. This value defines if switching should take place if a event for exceeding or falling below the threshold will occur. E.g. switching below the threshold can be used for a failure alarm, while switching above the threshold can be used for an overrun alert.
- 8 Reserved. Currently no further configuration for digital inputs is available.
- 9 Allocation to switching events. Using the buttons in these two columns, you can determine whether a switching event is to be spent on one of the two switching outputs. E.g. you can choose to switch the relay R2 on exceeding the threshold of an analog input.
- General enabling for SMS messages. This button determines whether alarm messages via SMS to be sent or not. This is a global switch, i.e. there are all SMS messages, no matter how they are configured, on or off. It's also possible to change this button by sending a SMS command, which is named "MSMS" by default.
- Activation of specific alarm messages. Use these buttons to determine whether a switching event is leading to a SMS message or not. The corresponding SMS message can be defined with the adjacent button (12).
- Alerts edit. This button opens a dialogue for defining the message text of a SMS for a switching event (see Section 6.2, editing of SMS texts).
- SMS query command for status message. This field contains the command string for status queries by SMS. By default, it is set to "STATUS".
- SMS switch commands for the relay outputs. In this two fields the command strings for switching the two relay outputs can be configured. The string means the keyword part of the complete SMS string, which is followed by an extension which defines what to do with the output. There are existing several different extension, e.g. "ON", "OFF" or "RELEASE" and so on.
- **IB** SMS command for enabling or disabling SMS messages by the device. This string will define the command, which is followed by an extension what to do.
- SMS command for enabling or disabling of interval messages. This field contains the command string which is used for enabling or disabling interval status messages by the device. The command string must be followed by an extension too. Please note, that this command only enables or disables the interval message service, it does not set the interval time. Currently it is only possible to change the interval time using the parameterization software. The interval message itself always consists of a standard status message.
- Button for direct enabling or disabling of interval status messages. This means that the status for interval messages can preselected by this button. Depending on the configuration, it is possible to change this setting by sending a SMS containing a command as configured at point 16.
- Selection for the interval time used for interval status messages. You can choose one of the predefined interval times.
- Button for initiating a new device search. Pressing this button repeats the device search in the same matter as on starting the program. During the device search, all available COM ports of the PC are scanned for connected GSM Sensor Control devices. The found devices are shown as tabs of the tab control window (2). The connection to the first found device is established automatically and its parameters are read and shown on screen.
- 20 Button for opening the help file.

Button for updating and saving the parameterization. If you press this button, all modified parameters are written back to the device and are directly valid. While you do some modifications on the device parameters, these are only stored in the PC memory. This includes the sub dialogues also. For activation of all changes, you need to press this button.

Button for closing the application without saving the made changes. Pressing this button causes terminating of the application immediately without saving made changes first. All made changes are lost.

Button for terminating the application after saving all made changes. This button is terminating the application too. but all made changes are first saved and immediately valid.

22 Display of the device serial number. This is the unique serial number of the currently connected and selected device.

6.2. Editing of SMS text

SMS Texteingabe:					
ADC1 limit exceeded!					
Ready. 2	Carcel Save				

- Input field for the text string. This can be used for editing the message text for the selected message. The maximum string length is 79 characters.
- 2 Status display. This field displays the number of already used characters for the message and how much is still available.
- Button for closing the dialogue without saving the made changes. The dialogue is closed without saving the data in the device parameter set.
- Button for closing the dialogue after saving all made changes. The dialogue is closed after the changes are stored in the device data set. Please note, that the device data set must be written back too before the changes are becoming valid.

2 Connector configuration GSMSensor Device name: Connector: Connector name: R-2 Relay output 1 2 sec. 3 Impulse interval: Relay output 2 2 sec. Impulse interval: DIG1 Digital input 1 Digital input 2 DIG2 DIG3 **Digital input 3 Digital input 4** DIG4 Analogue input 1 ADC1 5 Beginning: End value; Unit: 4.000 6 20.000 MA 8 3.3% Hysteresis in percent: 4...20 mA O 0...20 mA Input range: ADC2 5 Analogue input 2: End value; Unit: Beginning: 8 4.000 6 20.000 MA 3.02 Hysteresis in percent: 0...20 mA 4...20 mA Input range: Deta ρlo

6.3. The dialogue "Connectors and scales"

- Name of the device. In this field you can type a name for the device, which can have a maximum length of 9 characters at all. The name is used with different messages for identifying this device.
- Names of the relay outputs. This is used for defining the names of the relay outputs of the device. By default, the relay output 1 is named as "R1" and the relay output 2 is named "R2". This strings may have a maximum length of 10 characters.
- Interval time for impulse output on the relay outputs. Here you can define the impulse length for switching a relay output. The time is defined in seconds. The value can be between 1 and 255 seconds. The time means the time in seconds the relay switch stays on.
- Names of the digital inputs 1 to 4. As described in point (2), this fields defines the names of the digital inputs.
- Names of the analogue inputs. This fields are used to define the names of the analogue inputs.
- Beginning value for scaling the analogue measure values. This is the lowest value used for scaling and displaying the analogue measurement. This is also the value display on minimum measurement.
- End value for the scaling. This is the end value for scaling the analogue measure values. Same as described in (6), this is the value which is displayed as the analogue input value is at the maximum.

- 8 Units of the analogue measuring. This fields are used to define the units displayed for analogue measuring. This can be a string with a length of maximal 4 characters.
- 9 Hysteresis for switching functions based on analogue measuring. For triggering of switching events exceeding threshold or shortfall the threshold value, a hysteresis can be defined in percent. This value is set using the edit field.
- Input range for measuring with the analogue inputs. This setting is used to define the minimum level of a analogue input. It is possible to select a value between 0 and 4 mA. The input is also causing the range of the analogue input between 16 and 20 mA. The defined minimum level is converted to the scaling start level and the maximum input level is converted to the maximum scaling value. The range is always scale in a linear matter.
- Button for loading the default values. If you press this button, all parameters shown in the dislogue are reset to their defaults.
- Button for closing the dialogue without saving the changing.
- Button for closing the dialogue after saving all changes in the device data set, which must be written back to the device from the main dialogue window.

Phone numbers and s	afty		?
Name 1: Doe, John	Country code: Area code: +49 271	Phone number: 1234567 Phone number:	Accept commands
Testus	+49 271	7654321	Alert / Message / Timer
Name 3:	Country code: Area code:	Phone number:	Accept commands
Name 4:	Country code: Area code:	Phone number:	Accept commands Alert / Message / Timer
Name 5:	Country code: Area code:	Phone number:	Accept commands Alert / Message / Timer
Name 6:	Country code: Area code:	Phone number:	Accept commands Alert / Message / Timer
Name 7:	Country code: Area code:	Phone number:	Accept commands Alert / Message / Timer
Name 8:	Country code: Area code:	Phone number:	Accept commands Alert / Message / Timer
Confirm switching comma	different numbers too. ands by an answer SMS.		
Bereit.	9		n n

6.4. The dialogue "Phone numbers and safety"

- Name to the phone number. This field can be used for typing the name for the phone number. This is only used for helping the user. It has no further function.
- 2 Country code of the phone number. In this field you must enter the country code for phone number. If no country code is entered, automatically "+49" is used for Germany.
- Area code for the phone number. In this field, the area code of the telephone number is entered. If no area code is entered, automatically 1 is used.
- 4 Local phone number. This is the local part of the phone number. If no number is entered, 0 is used automatically.
- 6 Check box for enabling or disabling of accepting calls over this specific phone number. Commands, sent by SMS, are only accepted, if this option is enabled for the number. This is used for checking the permission for executing SMS commands on the device. This is also the reason, why no calls are accepted from callers, which have suppressed their phone numbers, because in this case the permission cannot be verified.
- 6 Check box for enabling or disabling of sending alert SMS to this phone number. This allows you to enable SMS events to a specific phone number only.

- Check box for enabling or disabling of status calls from phone numbers which are not listed in the phone number table. If this field is enabled, then also phone calls are accepted for status queries when it is not listed in the phone number table. But this callers are not allowed to send other SMS commands to the device.
- 8 Check box for enabling or disabling of automatic status messages after executing a SMS command. This is used for confirming the execution of command SMS.
- 9 Status line.
- Button for closing the dialogue without saving the changing.
- Button for closing the dialogue after saving all changes.

6.5. The dialogue for displaying measuring and for testing settings



- Numerical display of analog measured values according to the chosen scaling.
- Bar graph of the relative representation of the current measuring analogue levels.
- Display of state of the switching outputs.
- 4 Displays the current state of digital inputs.
- 5 Display for the status of the GSM connection.
- 6 Numerical display for the field strength of the received GSM signal.
- 7 Bar graph of the relative representation of the field strength of the received GSM signal.
- 8 Button to query the last SMS message that was created by the device. This button causes the transmission and display of the SMS text buffer of the device. The string is displayed in the field described with (11).
- Button to delete the SMS message. The content of the field, described with point (11), is cleared.
- Button to transmit a simulated SMS commands to the device. The content of field, described in point (11), is transferred to the SMS text buffer of the device and a simulated SMS reception ist started. The transmitted text is then processed as an SMS command. This feature allows to test the correct configuration of SMS commands.
- Simulated input for SMS commands and display of the last created SMS from the device.
- 12 Status line.

6.6. Analysis of SMS commands

In the following section is describing the manner in which the contents of incoming SMS commands is evaluated.

The device has a full-text command interpreter. This examines the text of the message received by the specified keywords. If a keyword is found, the command is processed. There are two different types of commands, query commands and set commands. In all the commands then the number of the sender of the SMS will be reviewed. Is this not found in the internal list of phone numbers, then the command is usually not performed. The exception to this is a simple status query which is also processed if the corresponding switch for accepting status queries from unknown callers in the configuration is enabled. For all other commands, the phone number must be found in the list and permission for the execution of commands must be set.

If all conditions are met, the device starts with the command execution. For a switching command, after the command is usually given an additional extension. The extension must be separated by at least one space between the command and the extension. The expansion will be searched from command end to end SMS text, which allows to combine multiple commands with an extension, so as to shorten the required text. Example: "R1 R2 on" turns on both outputs, because for both commands R1 and R2 the expansion "on" was found. If no extension is found, the defined standard extension is used. For switching commands this is no further action.

As command extensions a variety of words or abbreviations are accepted. Since the extensions are searched by a text search, they can also be combined or within (the beginning) of another word occur. Therefore, a priority is set so that the initials of an extension is not already accepted, if this string occurs within another extension. With the full-text search, it does not matter whether, for example instead of "PULSE" the word "PULS" appears, it is because each form is included in the keyword. However, all extensions must begin with a space character.

The analysis of the extensions are not case-sensitive. However, as it is not possible to send SMS text within all special characters, these special characters are automatically converted into an alternative form (this also applies to the keywords of the commands). Example: The character "Ä" is changed to the characters "AE".

Priority	Key word	Meaning/Function
1	RELEASE	release
2	SWITCH	toggle
3	TOGGLE	toggle
4	AUTO	release
5	FREI	release
6	PULS	impulse mode
7	EIN	turn on
8	OFF	turn off
9	AUS	turn off
10	CLR	release
11	SW	toggle
12	ON	turn on
13	AN	turn on
14	0	turn off
15	1	turn on
16	2	toggle
17	3	impulse mode
18	4	release

The following list shows the currently possible command extensions in order of priority:

The execution of command functions takes priority over the internal functions of the device, since a direct command from the user is considered as more important than the internal alarm configuration. E.g. was the device configured to switch R1 if a threshold is exceeded, and this condition is fulfilled, the R1 output normally is switched on. But if a user sends "R1 off" command the R1 is switched off regardless of the analogue value because the user command has the higher priority. For releasing this overwriting status, the user can send the "R1 auto" command. The default by the user is then removed and the output switches back to threshold is exceeded.

7. Misc

7.1. Application samples

7.1.1. Gate control over cell phone

The GSM Sensor Control is in an excellent way to control door systems using a cell phone. E.g. for opening or closing the gate the relay R1 or R2 is used with the pulse output mode. For clarity, in the dialogue "connections and scales" for the relay output a meaningful name can be assigned, for the example "GB2". Additionally, two digital inputs are connected to the both limit switches of the gate. This is realized by connecting digital input 1 with the limit switch for opening the gate and the digital 2 input is connected with the limit switch for closing the gate. Further, for D1 event the message "Gate B2 is open" and as D2 event message "Gate B2 is closed" can be defined. You also can assign the names "B2 up" and "B2 down" for the digital inputs to improve the differentiation.

The parameterization sample is stored on the CD-ROM. Of particular note is, that the check box "Automatic status messages after executing a SMS command" should be disabled in the dialogue "Phone numbers and safety", because otherwise the device is always sending 2 messages if the gate is controlled by SMS, on from the limit switches and one from the SMS confirmation.

Open the gate: (SMS) phone number + "TB2 pulse" > Feedback to the cell phone "**Gate B2 is open**" **Close the gate:** (SMS) phone number + "TB2 pulse" > Feedback to the cell phone "**Gate B2 is closed**"

If the GSM sensor control version with fully functionality is used, 2 more digital inputs (digital in 2 and 3) and 2 analogue inputs are remaining unused. So such a GSM sensor control is able to manage additional tasks parallel to the gate controlling, such as theft insurance using sensors or monitoring of temperature or humidity.

If you want to know whether the door is open or closed, you can always query a feedback using the "STATUS" query command.